1962

# Harry G. Heathman v. Sumner J. Hatch : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### NATURE OF CASE

This is an action brought by the appellant to recover expenses, costs, and damages for the negligent misrepresentation, breach of professional duty, betrayal of plaintiff's interests, and the willful fraud, deceit, and conspiracy of defendant in representing and advising plaintiff to his damage in matters of his defense against criminal charges wrongfully brought against plaintiff by County Attorney on complaint of one Ivan Bland, and defendant's neglect and refusal to proceed in the recovery of money due and enforcing plaintiff's possessory lien for work performed and material furnished upon vehicles allegedly owned by used car dealer, Ivan Bland.

## DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

On the 20th day of February, 1961, the complaint in this action was filed, (R. 1 to 6), and a motion to dismiss for more definite statement and to strike was filed by defendant March 13, 1961. (R. 7 to 8). Plaintiff filed notice of hearing May 18, 1961, noticed up defendant's motion to dismiss for hearing May 25, 1961 (R. 12 and 13). On May 23, 1961, defendant filed ex parte motion and order (R. 14, 15, 18) continuing hearing to June 22, 1961. Plaintiff filed motion (R. 20), Affidavit (R. 22), Order (R. 19), May 23, 1961. Plaintiff's motion granted, and hearing held May 25, 1961. Defendant's motion for more definite statement granted. Plaintiff filed amended complaint (R. 27) June 14, 1961. On June 13, 1961, plaintiff filed motion for summary judgment (R. 24) and notice of hearing. Court dismissed plaintiff's motion for summary judgment on motion of plaintiff, June 22, 1961. Defendant moved court for 30 days to reply to amended complaint. Court granted 20 days, plaintiff moved court to amend amended complaint. Granted by court (R. 43). Defendant filed motion to dismiss (R. 46) July 12, 1961. Plaintiff filed second amended complaint July 17, 1961. Defendant filed motion to dismiss (R. 84 through 88) August 3, 1961. Plaintiff filed motion to strike. Notice of hearing (R. 90 through 93) September 28, 1961. Hearing held October 17, 1961. Plaintiff's motion to strike denied. Motion to correct records denied (R. 94). Court entered order dated November 7, 1961 (R. 95) dismissing plaintiff's second amended complaint without prejudice. Finding of fact and conclusions of law filed nunc pro

tunc January 23, 1962. (R. 96 through 104). Plaintiff appeals December 5, 1961. (R. 102).

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

1. Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court to vacate order (R. 23 and 164) dismissing District Court Case No. 128599, wrongfully entered in this cause as plaintiff's motion, and to strike same from record.

2. Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court to vacate and strike "findings of facts and conclusions of law" entered *nunc pro tunc*, January 23, 1962, in this cause and declare same as void. (R. 96 through 101).

3. Plaintiff respectfully requests this court to discipline Attorneys Hatch and Jones, and to protect this plaintiff from further reprehensible and unlawful conduct and acts of Attorneys Hatch and Jones.

4. Plaintiff seeks a reversal of the order dismissing his verified second amended complaint (R. 95); that the same be reinstated; that defendant be required to answer; and that said cause be remanded to the Third District Court for trial and final determination on the merits, appellant being awarded costs on this appeal.

5. Or in the alternative permission to amend his complaint in accordance with this court's instructions.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts to support plaintiff's claim that order of dismissal (R. 23) Case 128599 and order (R. 164) should

be vacated and stricken from the record and declared void as a matter of law consist of the following:

Plaintiff's notice of dismissal, Case No. 128599, as provided by Rule 41(A)(1)(i), U.R.C.P., as a result of plaintiff's inexperience and inadvertence was captioned "motion" instead of "notice". (R. 157).

On or about March 10, 1961, defendant's attorneys prepared prejudicial motion and order to dismiss (R. 170-1-2), attached to the letter of defendant's attorneys dated March 10, 1961, and submitted same to the Honorable A. H. Ellett the following week for approval and signature. The Honorable A. H. Ellett, recognizing said motion and order as an attempt to prejudice plaintiff's voluntary dismissal as an *order* of the Court granting dismissal, denied said motion and refused to sign said order.

Defendant, through his attorneys on or about January 27, 1961, prepared an identical motion and order (R. 163-4) as previously denied by Judge Ellett, and in the middle of proceedings of this cause, Case No. 129540, held May 25, 1961, without a court reporter and over protests of plaintiff, without having the file of Case No. 128599 or the matter properly before the court, or motion and order properly served and noticed upon plaintiff as required by U.R.C.P. after a motion for order is denied by the Court and a direct violation of Title 78-7-19, U.C.A. 1953, and over objections of plaintiff, presented said motion and order to the Honorable Maurice J. Harding and obtained Judge Harding's signature on said prejudicial order, Case No. 128599. (R. 164) Order.

Said Minute Entry and Order, Case No. 129540, (R. 23, lines 10 and 11) reciting that order was signed on plaintiff's motion is a fabrication. Motion and order (R. 163-4) are plainly defendant's.

The facts are adequately presented in this record that the plaintiff has complied with the orders of the Court, and it is plain from the record that the *order* of the Court dismissing plaintiff's second amended complaint filed in this cause November 9, 1961, (R. 95), is a complete fallacy. There is no such order filed in this cause:

“Order of the court, requiring plaintiff to state the facts of his alleged cause of action in plain and concise terms”,

as grounds for said order of dismissal a certified by Clerk's certificate (R. 112).

That the only matters properly before the court to support dismissal of plaintiff's verified second amended complaint were defendant's motion to dismiss, motion for more definite statement, and motion to strike, filed March 13, 1961 (R. 7-8, par. 2) and defendant's motion to dismiss, filed August 3, 1961, (R. 84, 85, 86, 87, 88).

The facts plaintiff is depending upon to fully controvert Allegations 1 through and including 7 (R. 84, 85, 86), as recited in defendant's motion to dismiss, directed against plaintiff's second amended complaint (R. 84, 89) together with facts relied upon by plaintiff to support his request that by law he is entitled to protection from

the illegal acts, doings, and omissions of Attorney Jones are contained in transcript of proceedings of District Court Case No. 128599 (R. 177) and consist of Jones' unethical conduct in calling the Honorable Judge A. H. Ellett and deceiving Judge as to timely mailing of a motion directed against plaintiff's complaint, thereby obtaining Judge's agreement and action to orally order and instruct Clerk of the Court not to sign and enter plaintiff's default judgment as provided by law (R. 177, page 44, lines 9-30; pages 45, 46, 47 to line 28) Transcript of testimony and proceedings on motion to strike entry of default, and further, defendant and attorneys improper and unethical conduct in deceiving plaintiff and court with the false affidavit of Kathleen Cholley (R. 122) and willfully neglecting and refusing to withdraw said affidavit, and defendant and attorneys attempting to conceal said fabrication by tricks and fraud in willfully advising properly subpoenaed witness (R. 123, 129, 128) not to appear in court, and withholding said witness from plaintiff (R. 177, page 4, line 30; page 5, lines 1 to 30; page 7, line 18; pages 8 and 9; page 10, lines 1 to 15), and further obtaining cooperation of Clerk of the Court in interrupting cross-examination of witness by plaintiff at critical point of witness entrapment and then instructing witness and securing time for her recomposure (R. 177, page 25, lines 23 to 30), and defendant and attorney misconduct and violation of Title 78-7-19, U.C.A. 1953, (R. 23, lines 10-11).

The facts relied upon in prosecution of the appeal as to sufficiency of plaintiff's second amended complaint



(R. 48 incl. 83) are particularly set out in both first and second cause of action. The allegations are that the defendant Hatch was engaged by this plaintiff Heathman on or about September 6, 1960, (R. 48 and 49, Allegation No. 3), to defend him against a felony complaint wrongfully brought against plaintiff by one Ivan Bland September 2, 1960, and to foreclose plaintiff's possessory and mechanic's lien and on the alleged personal property of Ivan Bland (R. 49).

It is further alleged that defendant conspired with Chief Criminal Deputy County Attorney Richard C. Dibblee to frame plaintiff on the charge of Embezzlement and Grand Larceny and defendant exercised forbearance and consent in allowing plaintiff to be bound to the Third District Court on a felony charge, City Court Case No. 38158 (R. 50, Allegation No. 4), wrongfully extended and enlarged on different facts and circumstances than contained in original complaint Case No. 38052 (R. 50), and that defendant did, in fact, allow plaintiff to be bound to the Third District Court upon Case No. 38158 without a City Court arraignment or being served a copy of complaint without a preliminary hearing; that defendant had ample time and opportunity to properly perform as agreed with plaintiff and to properly defend plaintiff.

It is alleged defendant failed in all particulars of his agreement to defend and represent plaintiff (R. 51 and 52) and the facts of defendant's breach of professional duty and betrayal of plaintiff's interests are alleged (R. 52 and 53).

It is further alleged defendant deceived plaintiff by misstatement and misrepresentation that plaintiff had been bound to the Third District Court on complaint No. 38052 rather than complaint No. 38158, and withheld from plaintiff that he had been bound to the court on complaint No. 38158, and further deceived plaintiff by advising him that he was properly bound to the District Court and that there was no remedy at law to vacate said bind over and to quash information No. 17135 filed in district court and further advised plaintiff he must plead to said information, defendant well knowing this would result in plaintiff waiving his rights to protest or contest any irregularities prior to District Court arraignment (R. 53).

It is further alleged that defendant well knew of the proper legal remedy to vacate said bind over and refused to exercise ordinary prudence, skill, and knowledge in plaintiff's behalf, and well knew plaintiff had a right to rely on him, and did so rely on him, to plaintiff's damage and detriment.

It is further alleged on or about October 13, 1960, that plaintiff, learning of defendant's breach of professional duty, betrayal or plaintiff's interests, negligent misrepresentation and conspiracy discharged defendant, and being *unable to secure legal counsel* plaintiff, per se, went to the Supreme Court, back to the District Court, on or about December 22, 1960, there obtaining (1) District Court order (R. 54) vacating order of Marcellus K. Snow, Judge, binding him to the District Court on



Case No. 38158; (2) order quashing information No. 17135 filed in District Court as a result of being bound over on Case No. 38158; and (3) order for a preliminary hearing in City Court Case No. 38158.

It is further alleged plaintiff, defending himself, secured his own discharge and dismissal at preliminary hearing, held May 10 and 11, 1961, (R. 55) at which time the trial court found there was no probable cause for Complaint No. 38158 in the first instance.

It is further alleged on or about October 7, 1960, defendant failed and refused to follow reasonable and proper instructions of plaintiff, to plaintiff's detriment and damage (R. 55-60).

It is further alleged defendant on or about October 10, 1960, after unreasonable procrastination, prepared a void notice of sale to plaintiff's detriment and damage (R. 57 and 58), said notice of sale made a part of complaint (R. 42).

It is further alleged in particular special damages suffered by plaintiff (R. 61, 62, 63), as a result of the misconduct, misrepresentation, breach of professional duty, betrayal of plaintiff's interests, failure and refusal to exercise proper skill by defendant.

The facts of the impropriety of the filing of findings of facts and conclusions of law (R. 96-7-8-9), 101) are very apparent in this record.

That the prejudicial findings of facts and conclusions of law (R. 96, 101) are void as a matter of law and im-

properly presented to the court January 23, 1962, by Attorney Jones during the proceedings and hearing on Case No. 132540 (R. 234) by his usual improper conduct (R. 234, page 6, line 29; page 7, lines 1 to 17) and *signed* and *filed* by Judge Maurice Harding on January 23, 1962, when the Judge completely lacked jurisdiction of the case, the parties, and the subject matter. Judge Harding signed said findings after he had disqualified himself in Case No. 129540 (R. 234, page 17, lines 19 and 20). Judge Harding, being a Fourth District Judge, completely disqualified himself to sign any matter without proper invitation from the Presiding Judge of the Third District Court after he had denied jurisdiction of case.

That *nunc pro tunc* is not a valid or proper procedure for pre-dating and filing of findings of facts and conclusions of law and that findings of facts and conclusions of law must issue before judgment or *order* as a matter of law, dismissal *order* dated November 7, 1961 (R. 95).

The facts of defendant's willful knowing fraud, deceit, conspiracy, and malicious misrepresentation are adequately set out with particularity in plaintiff's second cause of action (R. 63 to 73, incl.). The allegations in No. I (R. 63), No. II (R. 63-69), No. III R. 69-70), No. IV (R. 74), No. V. (R. 72-73) state the facts of defendant's willful and knowing betrayal of plaintiff's interests and his deliberate fabrications to deceive and conceal the true facts from plaintiff of defendant's fraud and conspiracy with Richard C. Dibblee and others in allowing plaintiff to be unlawfully bound over to the

Third District Court. It is further alleged willful breach of professional duty imposed by law in defendant's willful refusal and failure to exercise a reasonable standard of professional skill in plaintiff's behalf in all matters entrusted to him and using his fiduciary position to conceal the true facts from plaintiff. The true facts are fully stated in each allegation as to defendant's fraud, deceit, conspiracy and willful fabrications.

The legal claims asserted in plaintiff's second amended complaint and contained in the record are treated in the argument herein.

It is very apparent from the record that defendant and his attorney's motion to dismiss (R. 84 incl. 88) is frivolous, deceiving, without foundation in law, and intended to confuse plaintiff, and a devise to stall for time and to lead this plaintiff into fatal error in law.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I.

THE APPELLATE COURT MUST VIEW THE RECORD IN A MANNER MOST FAVORABLE TO PLAINTIFF.

The trial court in dismissing plaintiff's second amended complaint based upon defendant's motion to dismiss (R. 84) could only issue as a result of defendant having deceived the court; however, it appearing from the record that the matters recited in defendant's motion to dismiss, for more definite statement, and to strike of March 3, 1961, were before the court at hearing October 17, 1961, more particularly defendant's allegation that complaint fails to state a claim upon which

relief can be granted (R. 7). No answer was ever filed, nor does the court's order reflect the true grounds or basis for its holding. (R. 95).

It appears the court ruling must be considered to have encompassed all the grounds presented by defendant's motions. Before the ruling of the court may be affirmed, it must appear that the plaintiff's complaint when considered in a light most favorable to the plaintiff under any set of facts stated in the complaint could not state a claim for relief at law, or that misjoinder of issues and damage is a valid grounds for dismissal.

In *Tangreen v. Ingalls*, Supreme Court of Utah, No. 9297, November 30, 1961, 367 P. 2d 179, the Court stated as follows:

"The sustaining of summary motions without affording the party an opportunity to present his evidence is a stringent measure which Courts should be reluctant to grant. It should be borne in mind that although disposing of a case on such a motion may seem an easy and expeditious method of dealing with litigation it may not in fact be so.

"Unless the Court feels a high degree of assurance that such ruling is correct it may result in defeating that purpose and actually protracting the litigation by requiring an appeal and then having a trial which should have been done in the first place. Accordingly the privilege of presenting evidence should be denied only when taking the view most favorable to the party's claim he could not in any event establish a right to redress under the law; and unless it clearly so appears,

doubts should be resolved in favor of permitting him to go to trial."

In *Liquor Control Commission v. Athas*, 121 Utah 453, 4 243 P.2d 441 (1952), the Court stated as follows:

"A motion to dismiss should not be granted unless it appears to a certainty that plaintiff would be entitled to no relief under any state of facts that could be proved in support of its claim."

The Court further noted that a claim could be pleaded by "recitation of a conclusions of law or fact or both." To the degree that defendant's motion was based upon insufficiency of the complaint to state a cause, it is contrary to the above rules.

Plaintiff submits that his second amended complaint (R. 48 to 63) first cause of action clearly states a claim for relief well within the rule of the *Tangren b. Ingalls* case and the Liquor Control Commission case and the trial court erred in not so finding.

However, plaintiff submits even though the second amended complaint may be somewhat lengthy and not couched in professional language, as might have been done by a person learned in the law, yet the facts alleged constitute a legal wrong resulting in damages accruing to plaintiff and reflect a meritorious case against defendant as a matter of law and are a result of plaintiff's unprofessional efforts to inform the trial court and defendant of the wrongs suffered by this plaintiff at the hands of a skilled attorney who betrayed plaintiff and the trust plaintiff had deposited in defendant. Plaintiff

submits that Allegation No. 4, first cause of action, and Allegation No. II, second cause of action are somewhat as this Honorable Court said in its decision February 5, 1958, *McGavin v. Preferred Inc. Exchange*, 7 Utah 2d 161, 320 P2d 1109:

“The dismissal was bottomed on failure to state a claim on which relief could be granted. The complaint is somewhat prolix and is to a great extent a recitation of evidence, rather than being a short, concise, statement of a claim, as contemplated by our rules of procedure.<sup>1</sup> It sounds partly in contract and partly in deceit, with no separate statements in counts or paragraphs, as independent claims. The claims for general damages and punitive damage are mingled, the former for breach of contract and the latter presumably arising out of tort. Without separation as a distinct claim, there is a hint in some of the language of a claim for service performed, not arising out of an express promise.

“Since the dismissal was without prejudice, it seems obvious that, whatever claim plaintiff has would be pursued in another action, if not, in this one. It would seem reasonable and sensible therefore, and would expedite the matter considerably, if plaintiff were permitted to redraft his pleadings within the spirit of Rule 15, U.R.C.P. along lines suggested in this opinion. . . .”

But in this instant case plaintiff is a layman and felt it his duty to explain as best he could the particulars of defendant's breach of duty, and the fraud, deceit and

---

1. Rule 8(A), 8(E), U.R.C.P. 1953.



conspiracy in second cause of action. Plaintiff submits a reasonable man could answer this complaint or any part of it, if it were not for defendant being responsible at law for all the damage and injury claimed by plaintiff.

## POINT II

THE APPELLATE COURT MUST CONSIDER ALL OF PLAINTIFF'S VERIFIED SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT TRUE AS TO BOTH FIRST AND SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION.

The trial court should have considered plaintiff's complaint true in all particulars as a matter of law. Plaintiff's verified second amended complaint (R. 48-83) must be controverted or denied by a verified answer or defense; and Rule No. 8(d) U.R.C.P., EFFECT OF FAILURE TO DENY:

"Averments in a pleading to which a responsive pleading is required, other than those as to the amount of damage, are admitted when not denied in the responsive pleading. . . ."

Plaintiff cites the case of *Smoot v. Lund*, Supreme Court, No. 9515, March 14, 1962, in which a plaintiff's second cause of action was dismissed on a motion for summary judgment. Among other things, the court said:

"We turn to an examination of the plaintiff's claims to see whether a right to recovery could be made out, *assuming the facts to be as they contend.*"

Plaintiff respectfully submits had the trial court considered plaintiff's second amended complaint as true, court could not have dismissed plaintiff's complaint as a matter of law.

### POINT III.

THAT COURT ERRED IN DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT WITHOUT ALLOWING SAME TO BE AMENDED IF IT IS INSUFFICIENT, AND ERRED IN NOT FULLY CONSIDERING PLAINTIFF COULD NOT OBTAIN AN ATTORNEY TO REPRESENT HIM, AND THAT COURT SHOULD *EXERCISE ITS DISCRETION IN BEHALF OF LAYMAN*.

Plaintiff submits that crying layman can appear that one is taking advantage of a non-professional standing; however, the law also recognizes the difficulties a layman experiences in obtaining an attorney to properly represent him in an action against another attorney, *Vanderbilt Law Review*, vol. 12, p. 774, and also recognizes that the trial court should exercise all its discretion in favor of the plaintiff layman even to allowing amendments to complaint to correct *fatal error*.

The California Supreme Court said as follows, on the above subject, in *Pete v. Henderson* (1954) 124 Cal. App. 2d 487, 269 P2d 78, 45 ALR 2d 58,

“... where it appears that the plaintiff a layman was trying the case in person because of the impossibility of securing an attorney to represent him. . . . That fact should be considered in determining whether the trial court should exercise any discretion it may have to grant relief from a particular default. That discretion should be exercised.”



Plaintiff respectfully submits that trial court erred in not fully considering plaintiff's almost insurmountable legal obstacles and in not making allowances for plaintiff's inexperience and not learned efforts at law to construct his complaint and erred in failing to exercise court's discretion in behalf of plaintiff.

#### POINT IV.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ENTERING ORDER MAY 25, 1961, IN THIS CAUSE, CASE NO. 129540, DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT IN DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. 128599.

Plaintiff submits that said order entered May 25, 1961, in Case No. 128599 in the middle of proceedings held in this cause, Case No. 129540 (R. 23, lines 10-11 and R. 164) was a trick of defendant and attorney to obtain an order of the court dismissing plaintiff's cause in Case No. 128599, and a direct violation of Title 78-7-19, REPEATED APPLICATION FOR ORDERS FORBIDDEN, and that the attorney well knew he was taking advantage of plaintiff and well knew the impropriety of taking the matter before Judge Harding after his motion had been denied by Judge Ellett. (R. 170—1-2) Defendant and his attorney were obviously taking advantage of the fact that said hearing was not reported as this plaintiff had requested and demanded of Clerk of the Court, and defendant and attorney well knew the impropriety of bringing the subject matter before the court without motion being properly noticed and properly before the court and particularly during the proceeding of another hearing, and that attorney and defendant should be punished according to Title 78-7-20,

DISOBEDIENCE, CONTEMPT. This Honorable Court has recently said in *Hackford v. Industrial Commission*, (Sept. 28, 1961) 364 P2d 1091:

“The trial of disputes, whether before courts or administrative tribunals is *not a game of tricks* but is a proceeding purposed to find the truth on contested issues of facts and to correctly apply the law thereto.”

This plaintiff submits that all he wants is to go forward into the merits of this case, *if* the defendant can contest the issues present in complaint, however crude they may be. Plaintiff submits that trial court erred in entering an order dismissing his complaint in Case No. 128599 (R. 23 and 164).

Plaintiff respectfully submits that said order should be voided and stricken, pursuant to Title 78-7-20, as a matter of law.

#### POINT V.

THE APPELLATE COURT IN ABSENCE OF STATE BARR ASSOCIATION ACTING OR PERFORMING ITS DUTY SHOULD DISCIPLINE ATTORNEYS HATCH AND JONES AND PROTECT THIS PLAINTIFF FROM THEIR FURTHER MICONDUCT UPON THE FOLLOWING TWO THEORIES:

- A. APPELLATE COURT HAS THE ABSOLUTE AND FINAL JURISDICTION OF DISCIPLINING ATTORNEYS.
- B. APPELLANT HAS RIGHT TO PROTECTION FROM ATTORNEYS IN THEIR WILLFUL VIOLATION OF STATUTES AND CANNON OF RULES OF ETHICS ON ATTORNEY'S CONDUCT.

Plaintiff submits that he has tried repeatedly to obtain protection from Attorneys Jones and Hatch's misconduct from the court and the State Bar Association.

This plaintiff is now so disgusted and discouraged and plaintiff now has only contempt and pity for such breach of professional duty that is apparent in this record, and prays the court to examine this entire record for the misconduct and breach of ethics apparent herein, and if for no other reason than to protect the rest of the citizens of the State of Utah and the State Bar Association itself from the reprehensible action of Attorneys Jones and Hatch.

This Honorable Court, amongst other things, said as follows on this subject in *Re MacFalane* (April 1, 1960) 10 Utah 2d 217, 350 P2d 631:

“... We accept the fact that the final responsibility is upon this court and that this involves more than mere rubber stamp endorsement of the actions of the commission . . . in the prudent exercise of the power to discipline in order to maintain such standards lies the protection of the *public* and *The Bar* itself.”

#### POINT VI

THAT COURT ERRED IN ITS DETERMINATION BY ORDER DATED NOVEMBER 7, 1961, DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT "FOR FAILURE OF THE PLAINTIFF TO COMPLY WITH ORDER OF THE COURT REQUIRING PLAINTIFF TO STATE THE FACTS OF HIS ALLEGED CAUSE OF ACTION IN PLAINT AND CONCISE TERMS". NO SUCH ORDER OR ENTRY MADE IN THIS CAUSE.

Plaintiff submits the trial court erred in entering order (R. 95). The record is definite as reflected by the certificate of the Clerk of the Court (R. 112) that no such order was made in this cause. As a matter of law it is well established that there is a proper method for the

court to enter an order, and this Honorable Court has frequently held that the trial courts must use the proper methods, prescribed by law. This Honorable Court said in *Butting Tractor v. Ford*, 272 P2d 191:

“In entering any judgment it is the duty of the Court to make such order not inconsistent with law as will effectuate justice.”

The court said in *Attorney General v Pomeroy*, October 27, 1937, 93 U 426 73 P2d 1277:

“An order will not be construed as going beyond the motion in pursuant of which it is given.”

#### POINT VII

THE APPELLANT'S FIRST CAUSE IN TORT AGAINST THE DEFENDANT ADEQUATELY STATES A PRIMA FACIE CAUSE AND CLAIM FOR RELIEF ON THE FOLLOWING THEORIES:

- A. AN ATTORNEY IS LIABLE IN DAMAGES FOR NEGLIGENCE, NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION, MISCONDUCT, AND BREACH OF PROFESSIONAL DUTY IMPOSED BY LAW
- B. THAT DEFENDANT LAWYER VIOLATED THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF UTAH AND THE STATUTES OF THE STATE OF UTAH DESIGNED TO PROTECT THE LIBERTY AND PROPERTY OF PLAINTIFF, THE EQUAL RIGHTS AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW INTENDED TO PROTECT PLAINTIFF.
- B(1) THAT TRIAL COURT'S DISMISSAL VIOLATED PLAINTIFF'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS FOR ABOVE REASONS

Plaintiff alleges the first cause of action in his second amended complaint adequately states a claim for relief in tort on negligence, negligent misrepresentation, and conspiracy.

This Honorable Court recently held in *Kimika Toma, Administratrix, v. Utah Power and Light Company*, 365 P. 2d 788, Supreme Court 9402, October 26, 1961 :

“A tort is a legal wrong committed by one against the person or property of another. It is the violation of a duty imposed by law. Three elements of every tort action are: (1) Existence of a legal duty from defendant to plaintiff; (2) Breach of that duty; (3) Damage as a proximate result. It may arise by the violation of the duty in a given transaction or by invasion of some public duty by which damages accrue to the individual.”

It is alleged in plaintiff's complaint that plaintiff had entrusted to defendant all matters of his defense and affairs; that plaintiff had a right to rely on defendant, did rely on him and was injured by so relying and that defendant had proper time and opportunity to adequately represent plaintiff, and that plaintiff suffered damage by defendant's breach of trust.

This Honorable Court said March 14, 1962, in *Smoot v. Lund*, Supreme Court Case No. 9515:

“Where an attorney is hired solely to represent the interests of a client, his fiduciary responsibility is of the highest order and he must not represent interests adverse to those of the client. It is also true that because of his professional responsibility and the confidence and trust which his client may legitimately repose in him, he must adhere to a high standard of honesty and integrity in dealing with his client. He is not permitted to take advantage of his position or superior knowledge to impose upon the client; nor to conceal facts or

law, nor in any way deceive him without being held responsible therefor.”

Now the court’s attention is respectfully called to the case of *Hodges v. Carter*, 239 N.C. 517, 80 S.E. 2d 144, 146, 1954, that a lawyer:

“... is answerable in damages for any loss to his client which proximately results from a want of that degree of knowledge and skill ordinarily possessed by others of his profession similarly situated, or from the omission to use reasonable care and diligence, or from the failure to exercise in good faith his best judgment in attending to the litigation committed to his care.”

and *Cornell v. Edien*, 139 Pac. 602, says among other things:

“... that client’s cause of action is upon his breach of professional duty and would exist though breach unintentional.”

The court’s attention is directed to two recent Pacific cases which hold that if the attorney’s erroneous acts and advice were a proximate cause of the injury, recovery can be had. *Modica v. Crist*, 102 Cal. 2d, 144, 146, 276 P2d, 614 (1954), *Ward v. Arnold*, 328 P 2d, 164, 166 (Wash. 1958) recite:

“... the law does not require that negligence of the defendant must be the sole cause. . . . We see no sound reason . . . why the degree of causation which must be proved in an action for damages for malpractice should be any different from that required in an ordinary negligence case.”

Plaintiff submits defendant is a skilled attorney-at-

law, in fact, is known as a criminal attorney well versed in the criminal statutes. Now the court's attention is respectfully called to the leading case in point, widely quoted, *Spangler v. Sellers* 5 Fed. 882, 887 (C.C.S.D. Ohio 1881) and the recent case of *Hodges v. Carter* 239N.C. 517, 80 S.E. 2d 144, 146 (1954) that a lawyer

“... is answerable in damages for any loss to his client which proximately results from a want of that degree of skill in relation to business of that character, nor that he would conduct it with the greatest degree of diligence, care, and prudence. But it required that he should possess the ordinary legal knowledge and skill common to members of the profession and that, in the discharge of the duties he had assumed, he would be ordinarily and reasonably diligent, careful, and prudent.”

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