1962

Harry G. Heathman v. Sumner J. Hatch : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

Point 1. The plaintiff has failed to sustain his burden of showing that the findings of fact and conclusions of law herein are not supported by the record.

On or about August 3, 1961, the defendant filed a motion to dismiss directed to plaintiff's second amended complaint in case No. 129540, in the Third District Court (R.84). The plaintiff's second amended complaint had been filed July 17, 1961. In his motion the defendant pointed out the previous history of plaintiff's complaints and the various arguments and motions and proceedings which had been had with respect thereto. The motion shows that the court had, on many occasions, and in particular, at a hearing on May 25, 1961, instructed the plaintiff in length and in great detail, with respect to the proper manner of pleading, and advised him of the defects in his pleadings. This hearing on May 25, 1961, was not reported, but the court in its findings commencing at (R. 96) discusses in detail the events which took place at said hearing.

Defendant's said motion to dismiss directed to plaintiff's second amended complaint came on or before

the court for hearing on October 17, 1961, and the court heard arguments in support of the motion submitted by attorney for defendant, Shirley P. Jones, Jr., and the court also heard arguments from Mr. Harry G. Heathman. The court then took the motion under advisement, and on November 7, 1961, entered his order dismissing plaintiff's complaint without prejudice. It should be pointed out that the court would have been perfectly justified at this point in the proceedings in dismissing the plaintiff's complaint with prejudice, but the court had been exhibiting super-human patience and leniency with Heathman and only dismissed the complaint without prejudice. One would normally assume that the plaintiff, after receiving notice of the entry of such an order, would then file a new complaint and make at least some attempt to comply with the instructions and lessons that the court had given him in pleading. This the plaintiff did not do. He instead filed a notice of appeal, appealing the court's order. Ordinarily findings of fact and conclusions of law on a motion of this type are not required. *Wright vs. Union Pacific R. R. Co.*, 22 U. 338, 62 P. 317. Since the plaintiff had taken the rather unusual step of appealing this order, it was deemed advisable by the court to make and file his findings of fact and conclusions of law, and this the court did, on January 23, 1962, and entered the findings and conclusions nunc pro tunc as of November 7, 1961, the date of the order of dismissal without prejudice.

All presumptions on appeal are in favor of the

trial court's judgment. *Thompson vs. Hayes*, 24 U. 275, 67 P. 670.

In *Sorenson vs. Korsgaard*, 83 U. 177, 27 P.2d 439; and in *Larsen vs. Madsen*, 87 U. 48, 48 P.2d 429, this court held that where there was no bill of exceptions or transcript of testimony, findings of the trial court were presumed to be supported by the evidence.

It would seem that the findings of the court in this case, in view of the holdings in *Sorensen* and *Larsen* *supra* must be presumed to be correct and correctly state the facts until the appellant shows that such findings are not supported by the record. This the appellant has not even attempted to do in his brief on appeal in this court.

Point 2. There was no error in the *nunc pro tunc* entry of the court's findings of fact and conclusions of law.

Plaintiff seems to argue in his brief that because of the mere fact that the court's order of dismissal without prejudice was entered on November 7, 1961, and the findings and conclusions were not signed until January 23 of 1962, that it therefore necessarily follows that the court had no power or jurisdiction to act in the circumstances. The plaintiff cites no authority for this position and it would seem, in the circumstances of this case, that plaintiff's assumptions are totally unwarranted.

Rule 75 (h) of *Utah Rules of Civil Procedure* provides as follows: "If anything material to either

party is omitted from the record on appeal by error or accident or is misstated therein, the parties by stipulation, or the *district court* either before or after the record is transmitted to the Supreme Court * * * may direct that the omission or misstatement shall be corrected. * * * ” It would seem that Judge Harding wanted the record to correctly reflect the reasons for his ruling and that this was his intention in accordance with the rule when he made and entered findings of fact and conclusions of law nunc pro tunc with respect to his order of November 7, 1961, dismissing Heathman’s complaint without prejudice.

CONCLUSION

There is no merit whatsoever in plaintiff’s claims and irresponsible allegations against the defendant contained in the numerous complaints that he has filed in the Third District Court. There is no merit whatsoever in his appeal to this court. It is unfortunate that Judge Harding did not make his order of dismissal with prejudice and upon the merits, because it is defendant’s belief that if the court were to take the time to carefully study the mass of materials that plaintiff has filed already in this case, it would then be a simple matter for this court to affirm an order of dismissal on the merits and dispose of this vexatious litigation. In the circumstances, it would appear that apparently the only thing that can be done at this juncture in the proceedings is to determine whether or not Judge Harding’s

order was correct, and if so, to affirm it and turn plaintiff loose to continue his misuse of the facilities of the court below.